
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

APRIL 21, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Reverend Charles Jackson of Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church 

  

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / March 17, 2014 / As amended April 7, 2014 

                                                   Council meeting minutes / April 7, 2014  

                                                                                       

PRESENTATION:    Update by Matthew Brown on the Progress of the Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

PRESENTATION:    Beautification 2
nd

 Quarter Award / Hilton Garden Inn / Billy Meadows, General  

                                     Manager      

                                                         

 4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway              

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis 

   Review minutes / April 7
th

  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell 

   Review minutes / April 9
th

  

     

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

    Review minutes / April 9
th

  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

 

 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

         Review minutes / March 26
th

  

 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis           

D. Library Board - Lake  
E. Planning Commission – Scott  

   F.  Recreation Board - LeJeune 
   G. Utility Board - Fry  

          

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report             

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

                                         

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

1



 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     APRIL 21, 2014                               PAGE   2 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

   

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Prepaid Travel / Adrienne Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-13 

 

b.)   Support for ADEM Permit Modification to Include Construction 

        & Demolition (C&D) Landfill for the City of Daphne’s Tallent 

        Lane Facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-14 

 

c.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose. . . . . /Resolution 2014-15 

 

d.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose. . . . . /Resolution 2014-16 

 

e.)     Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Bellaton, Phase Three. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-17 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

       2
ND

 READ     
a.)    Regulating Construction Best Management Practices 

         for Residential Dwellings and Other Land Disturbance 

         within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-14 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Revising Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee 

       Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-15 

 

b.)   Establishing a Policy for Community Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-16 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Replacement 

        Civic Center HVAC Chiller. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-17-A & B  

 

 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Bryant Evans from Eastern Shore Church of Christ Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

  

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director, David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Mike Hinson, Finance Director;  Richard Merchant, Building Official; 

David Carpenter, Police Chief; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Willie 

Robison, BZA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee; Tomasina 

Werner, Beautification Committee; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and Downtown 

Redevelopment Authority; Andy Rutens, Galloway, Wettermark Attorneys. 

  

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; 

Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

March 3, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the March 3, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

March 10, 2014 Council Work Session minutes 

There were no corrections to the March 10, 2014 council work session minutes, and stand 

approved as written. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Frieda Romanchuk / Master Gardeners Conference 

 

Mrs. Romanchuk presented a power point presentation on the conference which will be held at 

the Civic Center, and the areas they will be visiting in the area.  There will be about 200 people 

attending the conference. 

 
                                            1.    Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance / 

                                                   Sign Provisions          

 

Adrienne Jones gave the presentation.   

 

Council President Pro tem Rudicell opened the Public Hearing at 6:42 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the proposed amendment to the land use ordinance / sign provisions. 

 

4



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Mr. Ross, City Attorney, stated that the ordinance is recommendation from himself and Any Rutens on 

issues that could arise from the Lamar lawsuit.  The proposed ordinance will clear up possible issues that 

could arise from litigation, and clear up language from future attacks, and strengthens the fact that 

Daphne does not permit off-premise signs. 
 

Council President Fry closed the Public Hearing at 6:45 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes from the March 10
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to transfer $1,000 from Council’s available 

training budget monies to fund a Volunteer Appreciation Day Breakfast and awards.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Treasurers Report / February 28, 2014 

The Treasurers Report as of February 28, 2014 is $19,068,771. 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / January 2014 

$974,225 was collected for the month January, which was up $5,088 from budget for January. 

Collections are up $3,782 year-to-date. 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / January 2014 

$43,198 was collected for the month of January.   

 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met last Monday, and the minutes are in the packet.  There are some projects in 

the works that will be coming to council in the future. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

No report.  The next meeting will be April 9
th

.  

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The March 12
th

 meeting has been rescheduled for this Wednesday, March 19
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The full committee voted in favor of Resolution 2014-11 approving the city’s participation in the 

Baldwin County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan. 

5



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e3
 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The February 6
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be April 3
rd

.  

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be March 26
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be March 24
th

 at 6:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The board met March 13
th

, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The January 23
rd

 minutes are in the packet along with the report from the February 27
th

 meeting.  

The Site Review meeting is, and the regular Planning Commission meeting will be a week from 

Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report.   

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The December 4
th

 minutes are in the packet. The next meeting is March 26
th

 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

Rob McElroy, General Manager for Daphne Utilities, introduced Samantha Cobble the new 

events coordinator for the Utilities. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report.               

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Requested council go into Executive Session at the end of the meeting, not to adjourn, but come 

back in case they need to have a vote and then adjourn. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – spring sports are in full swing.  They will be hosting 

McGill Toolens soccer tournament this weekend with 11 out of the 16 teams from out of state.  

April 3
rd

 starts the Brown Brown Bag By the Bay series from 11:30a.m. – 1:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

6



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e4
 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported Savvy Moms will be at the Civic Center 

March 19-22, Mobile Bottle Collectors Show will be April 4-5 and Ballroom Dance will be April 

18
th

. 

 

David Carpenter –Police Chief – reminded folks to lock their cars, and store valuables out of 

sight, because they have had a problem with theft of valuables and guns from cars. 

 

Mike Hinson – Finance Director – reported that the auditors were on site last week, and they 

will now be working on the 125 page report. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 

No report. 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of Eastern Shore Motel - spoke regarding the revisions to the sign 

ordinance. He is not pleased, because it does not go as far as it needs to go, but it is a start. 

 

Mr.’s Johnny and Ricky Armstrong – Modern Signs – spoke regarding the current sign 

ordinance saying it was very limiting.  They agree with the provisions for digital signage.   

 

Mrs. Louise Grace – Oldfield Subdivision – spoke regarding Public Works help with replacing 

street lights that were out.  She also spoke regarding a drainage problem on her street. 

 

Mr. Matthew Atwood – Algae Systems – spoke regarding the work being done by Algae Systems 

saying Right now they have 12 full time employees based here on the Eastern Shore, and they 

are going to hire seven more people in the next few weeks, and they have a regular income.  On a 

day to day basis they work with local contracting firms, and they have up to 20 people from 

contracting firms on site on any given day helping them build their project, and they have four 

leases in the local area.  In the past 1.5 years they have felt really quite at home here in Daphne 

and Baldwin County.  They have spent over $3 million since they started here about one and a 

half years ago from everything from salaries, equipment, contracting firms, hotels and 

restaurants.  They have people coming from all over the world.  They just had folks come in 

from Japan today to look at the project and visit the site, and stay here locally.  They have a long 

way to go, but they are getting there.  They have a lot more money to spend here, and he just 

wanted to take the time to let council know that they love the community.  They are thankful to 

be a part of this community, and if it was not for the leadership of the Daphne officials they 

would not be here today.  He thanked council, and he looks forward to coming again and giving 

another update once they have had a little success, and actually start to turn the project on.  He 

thinks it is impressive that there are a lot of people that go around talking about the project all 

over the world, particularly, Japan and other places that know where Daphne is, and they are 

always pleased when they come to visit and can’t wait to come back. 

7



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e5
 

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Boosketuh Circle – spoke regarding the proposed sign ordinance 

saying there needs to be balance between residents and commercial, and he is against billboards. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Participation in the Baldwin County Comprehensive Solid Waste 

  Management Plan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2014-11 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-11.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-11.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND 

READ    

a.)   Regulating Construction Best Management Practices for 

        Residential Dwellings and Other Land Disturbance within the 

        City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-08 

 

b.)   Regulating Illicit Discharge to the City of Daphne’s Municipal 

       Storm Drain System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-09 

 

 
c.)    Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

        Revisions to Zoning Map . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-10 

 

d.)   Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

        Sign Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-11 

 

 

Ordinance 2014-08 was pulled from the agenda and sent back to the Ordinance 

Committee for review. 
 

 

8



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-09 and 2014-10.   

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-09.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-10.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-11.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2014-11.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

Verbatim per amendment by Councilman Lake at the April 3, 2014 council meeting 

 

I have a concern about this ordinance.  First thing is the previous sign ordinance had no time 

constraints.  This sign committee had six weeks, and two six week extensions, and he thinks they put 

that committee in an unfair position when they gave them that short of time to go through 

something that they gave the previous committee a whole year to go through.  I heard one person 

say that the Daphne sign ordinance was to constraining, well, I have heard it said that the Daphne 

sign ordinance is the most liberal on the Eastern Shore.  We actually have, when you compare our 

sign ordinance to other communities north and south of us ours is probably the least restrictive.  

When I heard the Daphne sign ordinance, I believe, is the great equalizer. I remember before the 

sign ordinance was passed Highway 98 was a hodge-podge, and it was very obstructive we had the 

arrow signs, you had a lot of things going on, and that was not conducive to businesses. We 

actually have a lot more local businesses on Highway 98 now than we did prior to that.  One of the 

things I heard people say is Daphne’s sign ordinance is anti-business and Daphne is anti-business.  

I have heard that so many times it makes me sick, because it is interesting that Dunkin Donuts came 

to Daphne, chose Daphne as one of their first locations, Publix’s chose Daphne as one of their first 

locations in south Alabama, Fresh Market chose us as a first location, McDonald’s is building a 

new store in Daphne, rebuilding their old store which was there since the 70’s.  When you look at 

all that flat businesses coming into Daphne and building and they say it is a good business 

environment or they wouldn’t chose it.  I think that the sign ordinance is one of the corner stones of  

the quality of life in Daphne.  The citizens of Daphne moved here because we have a quality of life 

that they felt they wanted to have and live in the community.  You look at what we have built over 

the last few years I believe it is one of the cornerstones.  When you look at Tillman’s corner, when  

9



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e7
 

 

you look at Airport Boulevard sure they might be business meccas, but do people really enjoy living 

along there.  We moved here because we wanted to have an area or community that was conducive 

to live in and that we could say we appreciate.  We wanted a place that we could call home, and 

that is what Daphne is for me my home.  I think if you want to make the community and businesses 

stronger that you make it so that the people want to live here.  The more people that live here the 

more businesses will come here.  I think the electronic sign part, as previously said, one of the 

individuals actually that has had many years of enforcing the sign ordinance said is not 

enforceable or has a lot of problems with enforcing it.  When you have problems and concerns 

about that it really frightens me that we looked at it and didn’t take into consideration.  I think the 

committee worked very hard, but I think there was a lot of work put on them in to short a time.  I 

think the committee should have been given a little bit more options a little bit better.  The Planning 

Commission had public hearings I think the committee should have been had an opportunity to be 

also allowed to have some of those same things.  Those meetings were open.  Actually several 

people went to the meetings and were not allowed to speak, because it was among the committee 

members they were discussing, and I think they worked very hard for this, but I think we have gone 

too far to one way, and we need to be concerned about that, because when you let that out of the 

box you create a situation that you cannot close up it is going to take a long time to create and 

change and go back, and we really need to take the time to look at it.  

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Nay    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake    Nay    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Fry  NAY    Conaway, Lake 

 

                                                           MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

      1ST
 READ 

a.)   Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

       Sign Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-12 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Facility Repair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e8
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-13.  

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake    Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTIOIN BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-13.  Seconded 

by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-13.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2014-12 WAS  MADE A 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation, 

and return to adjourn the meeting.  The session will be for 30 minutes. Seconded by Council Scott. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing is an appropriate reason to enter into Executive 

Session according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Aye    

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake    Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott    Aye 

 

                                                   MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 7:42 p.m. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 8:22 p.m. 

 

 

11



MARCH 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e9
 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilwoman Conaway thanked those that served on the sign committee.  She was in favor of 

some of the revisions, but you will not be in favor of everything. She appreciated all the hard 

work and hours that they put in on the revisions.  She said the Lupus Walk was a success 

attended by a large number of people, and hopefully they will have more next year.  

 

Council President Fry thanked everyone for their support and well wishes on the passing of his 

father two weeks ago.  He really appreciated it, and he is glad to be back with everyone. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 8:23 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk       Council President 

12



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Danny Theurer with Bay Community Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Pat Rudicell. 

  

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Mike Hinson, Finance 

Director;  Richard Merchant, Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Larry Cooke, BZA; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Bob Segalla, 

Utility Board; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Andy Rutens, Galloway, Wettermark 

Attorneys. 

  

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

March 17, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

Councilman Lake requested that the minutes be amended to include verbatim his comments 

regarding adoption of Ordinance 2014-11.  Councilman Scott said he would like to see the 

amendment before approving the minutes.  Council President Fry laid the minutes over until the 

April 21
st
 council meeting. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   National Volunteer Week”  April 6-13, 2014 

Mayor Haygood read the proclamation, and Councilman Fry reminded the volunteers about the 

Volunteer Appreciation Day Breakfast on April 9
th

 at 7:45 a.m. at Bayfront Park Pavilion.  

 

Council President Fry recognized Boy Scout Troop 82 present this evening working on one of 

their badges. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will  be April 21
st
 instead of the 14

th
.  

 

 

 

13



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting and the minutes will be in the next packet. The 

next meeting will be May 5
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

No report.  The next meeting will be April 9
th

 at 4:30 p.m.  

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The minutes of the  March 12
th

 meeting are in the packet. The committee voted to send 

Ordinance 2014-14 “Regulating Construction Best Management Practices for Residential 

Dwellings and Other Land Disturbance within the City of Daphne to council with a 

recommendation for adoption.  The next meeting is April 9
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The minutes for the March 17
th

 meeting are in the packet along with the March 5
th

 Beautification 

and February 10
th

 Museum minutes.  The next meeting will be April 21
st
 following the Finance 

meeting. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The March 6th minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the first Thursday of May. 

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be April 23
rd

  at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be April 28
th 

at 6:00 p.m.  He will be attended a leadership trip with the 

chamber, and learned a lot about IDB, marketing and salesmanship. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The corrected January minutes and February 13
th

 minutes are in the packet along with pictures of 

implementation of the LSTA grant funds. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The February 27
th

 minutes are in the packet along with the report from the March 27
th

 meeting.  

The Planning Commission meeting will be the fourth Thursday of April. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report.  The next meeting will be Wednesday at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

14



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be April 30
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
a.)   Parade Permit / Christ the King Catholic School / 1 Mile Race / May 2, 2014 

b.)   Parade Permit / Southern Napa / 5K Run / May 10, 2014  

c.)   Parade Permit / Daphne United Methodist Church / 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / April 26,        

       2014  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permits for:  Christ the King Catholic 

School / 1 Mile Race / May 2, 2014; Southern Napa / 5K Run / May 10, 2014; Daphne United 

Methodist Church 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / April 26, 2014.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY       

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director –  
 

David Carpenter –Police Chief –  
 

Mike Hinson – Finance Director –  
 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 
           a.)  ABC License / Southern Napa / 140 – Special Events Retail 

           b.)  Directional Sign Variance / Christ the King Church  

           c.)  AL League Convention Voting Delegate / May 3-6, 2014 / Mobile, AL 

           d.)  Motion to transfer $650 to Councilman Lakes Training Account  

         

   a.)  ABC License / Southern Napa / 140 – Special Events Retail 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the ABC License for Southern Napa / 140 – 

Special Events Retail.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

15



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 
b.)  Directional Sign Variance / Christ the King Church  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the request for a Directional Sign Variance for 

Christ the King Church as shown (photos are spread out upon these minutes) (one (1) foot 

under street sign predicated upon the Downtown Redevelopment Authority having no 

objection, they meet April 23, 2014, and if there is a problem the request will come back to 

council.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
c.)  AL League Convention Voting Delegate / May 3-6, 2014 / Mobile, AL 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to appoint Mayor Dane Haygood as the voting delegate at 

the AL League Convention / May 3-6, 2014, and Councilwoman Conaway as 1
st
 Alternate.  

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
d.)  Motion to transfer $650 to Councilman Lakes Training Account 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to transfer $650 from his training budget into 

Councilman Lake’s training budget.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Jennifer Miller – 10358 Tampary Street – spoke in opposition of the proposed Hardee’s 

restaurant coming at Highway 181 and Highway 90.  She said people already cut through their 

neighborhood, and this would increase traffic. She was concerned that the Mayor used his power 

to have the admin staff approve the plans instead of going through the regular process, and it is 

pointless to say anything about the project because the Mayor is the developer. 

 

Mrs. Tomasina Werner – Daphne – announced the Lake Forest Improvement meeting is 

tomorrow at the Yacht Club at 6:30 p.m., and they are having a special speaker Michele Kurtz.  

She is the community consultant of the Homeowners Hurricane Insurance Initiative.  They have 

been successful in getting the Clarity Law passed which has to do with coastal insurance rates.  

They are trying to get the rates to be compatible with the rest of the state.  They have been 

successful in having that done.  They are the only group working for fairness in coastal Alabama 

insurance premiums. 

 

Ms. Jan Hill – St. Basil Street – spoke in opposition to the Hardee’s restaurant at Highway 181 

and Highway 90.  She feels that the founders did not envision a row of fast food restaurants in 

historic Malbis, but business that were open from 9-5.  She does not want the squealing tires,  

 

16



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

loud radios and trash that fast food places promotes.  She implored the Mayor to move the 

business. 

 

Mr. Paul Hill – St. Basil Street – asked Councilman Davis and Mayor Haygood to go stand on  

Mrs. Sandra Harrington’s back porch and look at where the Hardee’s is going to be, and then 

they would know what the residents are talking about.  He said if the Mayor proceeds with 

building the restaurant then he needs to build an eight foot brick fence like Zaxby’s. 

 

Mr. Steve Mills – Malbis – spoke in opposition to the Hardee’s restaurant at Highway 181 and 

Highway 90 saying that it is not what the community needs, because they cannot get through 

right now with Zaxby’s, and on some weekends you can’t get through that area.  It is a bad 

situation that is going to be worse, and he would like the Mayor to reconsider putting the 

Hardee’s in that area. 

 

Ms. Sandra Harrington – Corner of St. Basil and Emanuel – spoke in opposition to the 

Hardee’s restaurant at Highway 181 and Highway 90 saying that when they bought their 

property they were told that there would be businesses there, but they would be businesses like 

ice cream shops, cleaners, shops underneath and condo’s on top, and now she has a Zaxby’s and 

a service station with a car wash behind her, and the noise is really bad, and the trash is a 

problem, and if she has a Hardee’s at her back door these things will be worse.  She invited the 

Mayor and Council to come to her home to stand on her back porch and look to see how close 

that would be, it is right at her back door. 

 

Ms. Michele – 29761 St. George, Historic Malbis – said that a lot of the resident’s concerns 

were about transparency.  They would like to be more informed about what is going on.  She 

feels like some things are being done a little shady, at least putting a lot of question, a black 

cloud over the office of the Mayor.  They are not sure of exactly what is going on, but they know 

that they have a huge traffic problem.  They have for years tried to get speed bumps and traffic 

control measures for their neighborhood, but have been denied.  People cut through St. Basil and 

St George all the time to avoid the corner at the Shell Station.  They are concerned for the safety 

of the children, and asked that speed bumps and traffic studies be done before any more 

businesses are put up.  She asked the city to address a turning lane at Highway 90 and Highway 

181. 

 

Mr. Don. Johnson – 29741 Jason Malbis Boulevard - spoke in opposition to the Hardee’s 

restaurant at Highway 181 and Highway 90 saying that he voted for the mayor when he ran for 

council, and the Mayor thanked him for coming out.  Mr. Johnson suggest to the Mayor that he 

listen to this one comment and do the right thing and whatever the Mayor does to make sure that 

he knows that some of them voted for him and this is their home.  The last thing he wants to hear 

on a Friday night is “Do you want some fries with that”, that is just something he does not want 

to hear.  He asked the Mayor to please  reconsider this development. 

 

 

 

17



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – 23 Signal Hill, Spanish Fort – Owner of Malbis Shell Station &  LA Subs 

– 29640 State Route 181 – Part of Historic Malbis – corrected a misstatement made earlier 

saying that if people think that the developers of the Historic Malbis Subdivision didn’t think 

there would be fast food, potential national retailers in the B-2 zone district then they are wrong.  

He knew the developers quite well, and negotiated quite a bit with them, and their vision was to 

have a subdivision where the residential and the commercial would be in close proximity so that 

the residents could enjoy the benefits of having commercial enterprises close at hand within 

walking distance.  It was his insistence with the developer, and he had to pay an additional 

$50,000 to have this happen, but it was his insistence that the developer extend Emanuel Street 

into the commercial district so that they could have direct access to the community behind him.  

It was very important to him that people in the community could access his business without 

getting out in the traffic.  What is happening is all the subdivisions that went bankrupt in 2008 

and 2009 to the south and east are under development again so the traffic problems are going to 

increase there.  They are going to have to take actions, and they have started to take some 

actions, and the city has been cooperative with them in that respect to try to restrict the cut 

through traffic.  The cut through situation is caused by Highway 181 becoming jammed during 

peak times.  He does not feel the Hardees will be a detriment to his business or the community, 

however, he is concerned about Hardees management practices, and whether or not they will be 

a good citizen like he, Zaxby’s and the Drs. Office tries to be.  The Malbis Architectural Review 

Board will hire an outside firm to make sure that all the standards that the other businesses had to 

meet are met.  He will be part of that process and will make sure this happens.  He said that fast 

food places are explicitly allowed in the covenants. 

 

Mr. Cam Jones – Relative to someone that lives in the subdivision – wanted to look at things 

objectively and said that the original plans were for a single building with multiple shops in it 

and was planned in 2011.  Mr. Haygood was elected in 2012, and there is not supposed to be any 

interest of conflict, however, it was changed to a fast food restaurant after the fact. He asked why 

was there no due diligence done on the restaurant approval with this conflict.  He agrees that the 

fast food industry would negatively impact the community, and he wishes the council would 

reconsider. 

 

Mayor Haygood said he is glad to see each and every person at the meeting tonight.  He thinks 

the process needs people, and the citizens to come and be a part.  It is great to see the room filled.  

He wishes they could have had this discussion in a different venue.  He would like each one of 

them to know that starting on March 17
th

 he engaged their POA, and has asked a number of 

times for a meeting to be able to discuss their concerns, and try to address them, but to this point 

neither the POA or ARB has been able to schedule a meeting to have this discussion.  When he 

engaged in this process he had no clue that there would be push back in the community.  There is 

a Zaxby’s, which is a fast food restaurant on the adjacent corner, and this is a B-2 zone, and it is 

explicitly allowed in the covenant restrictions.  He is certainly glad to have this conversation.  

The one thing that concerns him is the pretense that brought most of them here which was a flyer 

that was disseminated, and he was provided a copy, and unfortunately it does not address the 

concerns as much as to try to paint a picture of him in a way that he does not think is warranted  

 

18



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

nor correct, and he would like the opportunity to continue this dialogue.  He will be available 

after the meeting as long as there is anyone around who wants to discuss the matter. 

 

Council President Fry encouraged the residents to meet with the Mayor.  He clarified a couple 

of things one is this issue did not come before the City Council, because no zoning change was 

involved.  The only time the City Council has a vote on something is if a zoning is changing 

from one zone to another zone.  This was already zoned for B-2 so there has been no action taken 

by the City Council on the matter.  He encouraged them or a representative for the community to 

come to the Public Safety meeting on Wednesday at 4:30 p.m., and if there are serious traffic 

concerns that they can do something about they can explore those options, and do what they can 

to help them in terms of getting the count and the speed of the traffic. 

 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Approve Applying for a CDBG Grant / 

       Dauphine Acres / Whispering Pines Area . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-12 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-12.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2014-12.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

 READ     
a.)   Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

       Sign Provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-12 

 

 

 

19



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-12.   Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-12.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
 

a.)    Regulating Construction Best Management Practices 

         for Residential Dwellings and Other Land Disturbance 

         within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-14 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2014-14 WAS  MADE A 1
ST

 READ 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilwoman Conaway is looking forward to the Volunteer Appreciation Day Breakfast on 

Wednesday. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he lobbied Congressman Callahan years ago for improvements to the 

intersection at Highway 90 and Highway 181.  He said calibration of the lights along that stretch 

need to be addressed and has lobbied Congressman Bonner and Byrnes for the same issues in 

that area. 

 

Councilman Davis appreciated the feedback from the community.  He said these are the kind of 

people that need to serve as volunteers.  The city will grow whether it wants to or not and what 

they have to do is make sure that they have plans to address the infrastructure, the transportation 

and the safety issues. They need to be ready to lobby at the appropriate levels that will be 

meeting later on in April with regard to the funding of the State Highway monies, and they need 

to step up and show justification.  He will be meeting with the residents in Historic Malbis to 

address their concerns. 

 

Mayor Haygood said there are seven (7) unsewered areas in the city, and that one project 

represents about 50% of the cost, and if they can find out a way to knock out that area, if they 

could end up sewering all of the City of Daphne that would be a wonderful accomplishment if 

they are able to get there.  He knows that was a passion that Mayor Yelding held and wanted to 

accomplish during his term, and he hopes that they are able to get it implemented.  He thanked 

Mrs. Conaway for scheduling a constituents meeting to help facilitate  

20



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

that goal.  He wanted to encourage everybody to come to the Brown Bag by the Bay on 

Thursdays through May at May Day Park from 11:30 – 1:30 and the Sunday Sunset Series in the 

evening two of which will be at City Hall.  The Mayor said Daphne is the 9
th

 fastest growing 

metropolitan area in the nation from 2012-2013 with the statistics the Census Bureau puts out 

year to year, and Daphne is the 14
th

 fastest growing metropolitan area since the 2010 census that 

is basically the Daphne, Fairhope, Foley MSA, but represents all of Baldwin County. The area 

grew by some 4,685 people by the estimates of the Census Bureau from July 1, 2012 – 2013, and 

they have to get prepared, they have to work on these projects. Some road projects will be 

handled through the Metropolitan Planning Organization which is a vehicle to employ Federal 

funds and to control where they are allocated in the area  Highway 181 and Highway 90 are both 

State roads and not under the city’s control, but they have to work as advocates to make sure that 

the transportation networks can continue to handle the growth that is coming.  There is a quality 

of life and people will continue to want to move here. 

 

Council President Fry appreciated all the feedback from the residents and thanked them for 

coming out.  He encouraged them to come to the council meeting every first and third Monday’s.  

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending 

litigation, and return to adjourn the meeting.  The session will be for 20 minutes.   Seconded 

by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing is an appropriate reason to enter into 

Executive Session according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Aye    

Lake    Aye    Davis   Aye 

Scott    Aye    Fry   Aye 

 

                                                   MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 8:10 p.m. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 8:25 p.m. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

21



APRIL 7, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 8:22 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk       Council President 

22



24”

24”

23



24



25



26



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

27



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, April 07, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis, Councilman Randy Fry, Margaret Thigpen, Sarah Toulson 

(Recording Secretary), Christine Ciancetta, Richard Johnson, Richard Merchant, Mayor Dane 

Haygood, Selena Vaughn (Village Point Foundation), Frank Barnett, Al Guarisco,  

Absent: Councilman Pat Rudicell, Rick Whitehead, Frank Barnett, Suzanne Henson 

The meeting brought to order at 5:30 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Approval of Minutes: March 3, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the March 3, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. Davis.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

2. Surplus Property Resolutions 

 

Christine Ciancetta presented a resolution to the committee declaring certain personal 

property surplus and authorizing disposition: 

a. Wooden desk, 

b. Wooden coffee table, and 

c. Kenwood Radios 25+/ Headsets-2/Microphones-10/Radio Accessories 

   

A second resolution was also presented declaring certain personal property surplus and 

authorizing disposition: 

a. EQ#1145-L Caterpillar Backhoe Loader 420D - SN: FDP24219 

 

Motion: Mr. Fry moved to favorably recommend both Resolutions to Declare Certain 

Personal Property Surplus and Authorize the Mayor to Dispose of Such Property to the City 

Council for approval, and was seconded by Mr. Davis.   

The Motion carried unanimously. 

 

3. Civic Center & Bayfront report (March): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her March report.  March 2014 revenue totaled 

$21,487.25, an increase from March 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $95,538.00, 

above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for March 

28



stood at $12,938.00, and that the Civic Center has seen nine events during March, for a total 

of 18 days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for March totaling 

$7,675.00, above March 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $33,053.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.   

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she reported that the HVAC chiller at the Civic Center was recently struck by 

lightning.  The initial cost for replacement was $56,000, but due to insurance coverage, the 

City would only need to pay a $5,000 deductible to cover the cost of replacement. 

 

Motion: Mr. Davis moved to favorably recommend to the Finance Committee and City 

Council a $5,000 appropriation to cover the cost of the deductible for the repair of the Civic 

Center chiller for approval, and was seconded by Mr. Fry.   

The Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Thigpen concluded her report by mentioning positive survey results the Civic Center had 

received through Survey Monkey, and an upcoming advertisement in Business Alabama. 

 

4. Civic Center Roof Leak Update 

 

Mayor Haygood reported that he had recently met with a company to discuss the issue and 

the cost to make necessary repairs.  The company gave him a $50,000 quote, with a ten year 

warranty.  The quote would cover the repairs necessary to mend the leaks in the green room 

and four roofs in Civic Center. 

 

Mayor reported that he was ready to move forward with the necessary actions to see these 

repairs completed.   

 

5. Building inspection monthly reports (March):  Richard Merchant 

 

Richard Merchant reviewed the building report information submitted to the committee, 

pointing out that 90 permits were filed during March, with five new residential starts. Total 

job cost was $2,182,700.20 with permit fees totaling $17,963.47.   

 

6. Replacement of HVAC Units for Recreation Building: Richard Johnson 

 

Mr. Richard Johnson gave a brief description of the situation, refreshing the Committee 

members on what was discussed at the March Buildings and Property meeting.  Recreation 

Director David McKelroy currently has $14,000 set aside in the budget to replace one unit.  

It is the recommendation of Frank Barnett, the Maintenance Supervisor, and Mr. Johnson 

29



that the Council appropriate funds to move ahead with the replacement of all three units for 

an additional appropriated amount of $21,000. 

 

The Committee is awaiting staff recommendation before taking action on the acquisition of 

the HVAC units. 

 

7. Bayfront Property: Selena Vaughn 

 

Selena Vaughn gave an update of projects and initiatives the Village Point Foundation was 

currently undertaking, including the following: 

 

 Seeking a lightning rod to be installed on Jackson’s Oak to protect from possible 

lightening damage. 

 Seeking to place night cameras at the cemetery at Village Point Park Preserve to deter 

vandals. 

 Currently replacing dead trees with live species along trails. 

 

8. Other Business 

 

Chairman Davis mentioned that the draft for a proposed memorial policy was currently under 

development and would be ready for discussion in May. 

 

Chairman Davis also mentioned the potential BARC meeting and partnership.  He and others 

will attend BARC’s annual meeting scheduled for April 16, 2014. Representatives from BARC 

will attend the May meeting of the Buildings and Property Committee. 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:30, motion by 

Mr. Davis and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 1 
 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, April 9, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                    

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 Chairman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:10 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune.   

 

Absent:  Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Angie Phillips, 

Revenue Officer. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / March 12, 2014 

There were no corrections to the March12, 2014 minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

 

a) Proposed Amendment to the Employee Handbook / Hazardous Weather Pay Polices 

The ordinance was presented with the requested changes from the last meeting. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to recommend the proposed Ordinance 

amendmending Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee Handbook.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 2 
 

 

b.)    Proposed Ordinance Establishing a Policy for Events Held within the City of   

   Daphne 

The committee amended the ordinance as listed below: 

a.)  Section 5.5 that the school be general in nature and not limit it to Homecoming. 

b.)  Section 8 the fine be $25.00 nor more than $100 and may also be sentenced to the    

       maximum as permitted by law. 

c.)   Include language regarding band permits which includes the Noise Ordinance. 

 

Councilman Scott asked that this ordinance with the amendments come back on the agenda in 

May. 

 

d.)   Proposed Community Grant Guidelines Ordinance 

The committee requested that the word contribution be deleted from the application. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to recommend to council the Community Grant Ordinance.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                     MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
No other business to consider. 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be May 14, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

38



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

39



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

March 26, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Kennard Balme, Doug Bailey, Patricia Vanderpool, 
Council Member Tommie Conaway 
 
Absent: Debbie Strahley, Dayna Oldham, Dorothy Morrison, 
 
Also Present: Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); John Beck, JMF Solutions; 
Annie Root, Daphne Art Center 
 
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:48 pm 
 
1. Guest: Annie Root, Daphne Art Center 
 
Ms. Annie Root addressed the DRA, asking for general support and assistance in an 
art show to take place in and around the downtown Daphne area in May or June 
2014.  Included in the event would be art exhibits and sales by area artists, fresh 
produce for sale by local vendors such as Allegri Farmer’s Market, and extended 
hours for the Daphne Museum. 
 
Ms. Casey Zito thanked Ms. Root for thinking of the DRA when seeking support. 
 
2. DRA Website: John Beck, JMF Solutions 
 
Mr. John Beck of JMF Solutions presented the finished website mock up for the DRA 
website, downtowndaphne.org.  The Committee discussed the website, and gave 
input for improvements to Mr. Beck. 
 
3. Approval of Minutes:  
 

Motion:  to approve the minutes from the February 19, 2014 meeting.  Moved by 
Doug Bailey, second by Kennard Balme.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
4. Treasurer’s report 
 
Chairwoman Zito reported that the DRA currently had $113,397.28 on hand, 
including a Lodging Tax deposit for October, November, and December 2013. 
 

40



  

Motion: to approve the Treasurer’s Report as given.  Moved by Patricia 
Vanderpool, second by Casey Zito. 
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
5. Update: Christmas Star Purchase 

 
Sarah Toulson reported that the Christmas star would be ordered the next business 
day following the meeting for $247.70.   
 
6. Other business discussed 
 
Bayfront Pavilion 
 
The Committee briefly discussed granting assistance to Bayfront Pavilion.  General 
consensus was reached to ask Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen if there was 
any way in which the DRA could help improve this area. 
 
Economic Development Association of Alabama 
 

Motion: to appropriate $250 to join the Economic Development Association of 
Alabama.  Moved by Patricia Vanderpool, second by Doug Bailey. 
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
 
Next meeting: April 23rd at 5:30 pm. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:59 pm. 
 
 

41



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

42



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

43



 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-13 
PREPAID TRAVEL 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA HEREBY 

AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING: 

Prepaid travel expenses are approved for the purpose and amount indicated below for 
the following: 

 

Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director, 2014 American Planning 
Association National Planning Conference, April 25th through April 30th, 2014, 
Atlanta, Georgia - $255. 

 

A complete expense summary with receipts will be submitted and approved by the 
Mayor upon return from the above.  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on  
this ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 

 

______________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

44



45



46



47



48



49



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2014-14 
 

 

SUPPORT FOR ADEM PERMIT MODIFICATION TO INCLUDE 

CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION (C&D) LANDFILL FOR THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE’S TALLENT LANE FACILITY 

 

 

WHEREAS, in the spring of 2012, as a product of a settlement of long-term litigation, the City 

of Daphne acquired the dirt pit operated by Earth, Inc. (Scott Curtis) at the southeast terminus of 

Tallent Lane in the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, in addition to the mining operation, Earth, Inc. was landfilling inert vegetative 

debris and per the settlement of the litigation the ADEM Permit was transferred to the City of 

Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has name the landfill The Tallent Lane Facility, and is continuing the 

landfill of inert vegetative debris produced by the City of Daphne under the management of the 

City’s Public Works Department, Division of Solid Waste; and 

 

WHEREAS, from the time of settlement and acquisition it was the intent of the City to modify 

the ADEM Permit to include the landfill of Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris 

produced by the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to application to the Alabama Department of Environmental Management 

(ADEM) for Permit Modification,  "Host Government Approval" must be given by the Baldwin 

County Waste Siting Board (Baldwin County Commission) and by the South Alabama Regional 

Planning Commission (SARPC); and 

 

WHEREAS, all required Siting Criteria has been submitted to the Baldwin County Waste Siting 

Board and are deemed complete and consistent with the Baldwin County Solid Waste Plan, 

which the City is an affiliate. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA authorizes the Mayor and the Director of Public Works to proceed 

with all necessary actions and execute all required documents to achieve the desired ADEM 

Permit Modification to include the landfill of Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris at the 

City’s Tallent Lane Facility. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council whole heartedly supports the ADEM Permit 

Modification Application and requests the support and approval of the Baldwin County 

Commission, South Alabama Regional Planning Commission, and Alabama Department of 

Environmental Management 

 

 

50



 

 

RESOLUTION 2014-14                           SUPPORT  ADEM C&D LANDFILL                      PAGE   2 

 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Dane Haygood 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes 

City Clerk 
 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



RESOLUTION 2014 - 15 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

EQ#1145-L CATERPILLAR BACKHOE LOADER 420D  - SN: FDP24219  
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2014. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

78



RESOLUTION 2014 - 16 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

Fire Dept Wooden Desk 
Fire Dept Wooden coffee Table 

 Fire Dept Kenwood Radios 25+/ Headsets-2/Microphones-10/Radio Accessories 
  

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2014. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

79



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION 2014-17 
 

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage 

Located in Bellaton Subdivision, Phase Three 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning 

Commission of Daphne has given Final Plat approval to Bellaton Subdivision, Phase Three on March 27, 

2014, and the City of Daphne hereby recommends acceptance of said street(s) located in Bellaton 

Subdivision, Phase Three; and 

 

WHEREAS, an inspection was made by the Director of Community Development and all reports, as well 

as, all other related documents have been provided stating that said streets and stormwater drainage have 

been installed in conformity with city standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has accepted 

said streets and stormwater drainage of Bellaton, Phase Three; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Belforest Water Board accepted the utilities of Bellaton, Phase Three; and 

 

WHEREAS, the developer has provided to the City a two-year maintenance bond in the amount of $53,7 

63.86 as required and requests acceptance and dedication of the same for maintenance of said 

improvements as outlined in Article XVII, entitled Procedures for Subdivision Review of the City of 

Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the developer has caused the plat to be recorded on slide 2504-E of the records in the 

Baldwin County Judge of Probate Office; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of the 

City for the City to accept said right-of-way. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: that Bellaton Subdivision, Phase Three the portions of rights-

of-ways being named Volterra Avenue (1,100 linear feet), the remaining portion of Alex Court (700 

linear feet), and the remaining portion of Huxford Street (361 linear feet), are hereby accepted by the City 

of Daphne, Alabama as city streets for maintenance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _____ day of _________, 2014. 

 

     THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

             A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION  

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

     ATTEST: 

 

       _________________________________ 

       REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2014-14 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING 

CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

FOR RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS AND OTHER 

LAND DISTURBANCE WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama deems it to be in the best interest 

of public health, safety and the general welfare of its citizens to establish regulations for construction best 

management practices; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne and the continued 

development of the area to implement satisfactory controls for construction best management practices 

including but not limited to erosion and sediment controls for residential dwellings and other land 

disturbance within the City of Daphne. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: TITLE ORD. NO. 2014-14 CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

FOR RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS AND OTHER LAND DISTURBANCE WITHIN THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE. 

 

SECTION II: JURISDICTION 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all lands within the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne. 

 

SECTION III: PURPOSE 

 The intent of this Ordinance is to provide minimum standards to ensure effective storm water 

management, drainage management, and construction best management practices for individual 

residential dwellings and any other activity that results in more than one thousand (1000) square feet of 

land disturbance that will not reach Final Stabilization with a fourteen (14) calendar day period within the 

City of Daphne other than activities that would require the issuance of a site disturbance permit from the 

Community Development Department and the exceptions for land disturbances as noted in Section V.   

The fourteen (14) day period does not relieve the individual from implementing Best Management 

Practices to minimize onsite and offsite impacts to wetlands, streams,  public and other private property. 

 

SECTION IV: DEFINITIONS  

 For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning 

respectively ascribed to them by this section unless taken specific exception to elsewhere in this 

Ordinance:                                                                                                             

 

1. “ADEM” means the Alabama Department of Environmental Management. 

 

2. “Alabama Handbook” means the latest edition of the Alabama Handbook for Erosion Control, 

Sediment Control, and Stormwater Management on Construction Sites and Urban Areas.  A copy of the 

92



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 2 of 8 

2 
 

latest edition can be found on the Alabama Soil and Water Conservation Committee’s (ASWCC) web 

page (www.swcc.state.al.us) . 

 

3. “Best Management Practices” or “BMPs” mean implementation and continued maintenance of 

appropriate structural and non-structural practices and management strategies to prevent and minimize the 

introduction of pollutants to Stormwater and to treat Stormwater to remove pollutants prior to discharge.  

 

4. “Building Inspector” means a City employee who under general supervision, performs technical 

review of plans and building permit applications for completeness and general compliance to State 

regulations, model codes and local Ordinances.  The building inspector conducts field inspections of 

building construction, reconstruction and alterations at various stages and at completion to assure 

compliance with approved plans and specifications. 

 

5. “City” means the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

6. “Clearing” means any activity that removes the vegetative surface cover. 

 

7. “Code Enforcement Officer” means the City employee who carries out the City’s code 

enforcement program whereby individuals in violation of City codes and related regulations are 

identified, investigated, and corrected utilizing appropriate enforcement measures.  

 

8. “Common Plan of Development or Sale” means any announcement or piece of documentation 

(e.g., sign, public notice, or hearing, sales pitch, advertisement,  drawing, permit application, zoning 

request, computer design, etc.) or physical demarcation  (e.g., boundary signs, lot stakes, surveyor 

markings, etc.) indicating construction activities may occur on a specific plot.  Individual lots within a 

common plan of development are required to acquire ADEM NPDES General Permit coverage for  Land 

Disturbing Activitysince cumulatively, the lots have potential to disturb more than one acre at a time. 

 

9. “Community Development Director” means the City employee who plans, organizes and reviews 

the activities and operations of the Community Development Department including planning and 

community and neighborhood enhancement. 

 

 

10. ”Construction Best Management Practices Plan” or “CBMP Plan” means a plan that includes 

research, planning considerations, systems, procedures, processes, activities and practices implemented 

for the prevention and/or minimization of pollutants in Stormwater to the maximum extent practicable, 

and collection, storage, treatment, handling, transport, distribution, land application or disposal of 

construction Stormwater and onsite management of construction waste generated by the  Land Disturbing 

Activity, and to comply with the requirements of the City of Daphne.   

 

11.  “Erosion” means the process by which land surface is worn away by the action of wind, water, 

ice and/or gravity. 

 

12. “Final Stabilization” means the application and establishment of the permanent ground cover 

(vegetative, erosion resistant hard or soft material or impervious structures) planned for the site to 

permanently eliminate soil erosion to the maximum extent practicable. Established vegetation will be 

considered final if 100% of the soil surface is uniformly covered in permanent vegetation with a density 

of 85% or greater.  Permanent vegetation shall consist of: permanent grasses, planted trees, shrubs, 

landscaped flower beds, perennial vines; an agricultural or a perennial crop of vegetation appropriate for 

the region. Final stabilization applies to each phase of construction. 

93



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 3 of 8 

3 
 

 

13. “Grading” means excavation or fill of material, including the resulting conditions thereof. 

 

14. “Land Disturbing Activity” means any and all activities which results in more than one thousand 

(1000) square feet of land disturbance and/or change to the existing storm water drainage characteristics 

of land.  

 

15. “Land Disturbance” means the disturbance of soils associated with clearing, grading, excavating, 

filling of land, or other similar activities which may result in soil erosion.   

 

16. “NPDES” means National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System. 

 

17. “Ordinance” means this ordinance regulating construction best management practices for 

residential dwellings and other land disturbance within the city of Daphne. 

 

18. “Permittee” means any person who obtains a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Daphne 

Building Department. 

 

19. “Pollutant” means anything which causes or contributes to pollution. Pollutants may include, but 

are not limited to: paints, varnishes, and solvents; oil and other automotive fluids; non-hazardous liquid 

and solid wastes and yard wastes; refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, 

and accumulations, so that same may cause or contribute to pollution; floatables; pesticides, herbicides, 

and fertilizers; hazardous substances and wastes; sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens; dissolved and 

particulate metals; animal wastes; sediment, solid wastes and other residues that result from constructing 

a building or structure; and/or noxious or offensive matter of any kind. 

 

20. “Priority Construction Site” means any site that discharges to a waterbody which is listed on the 

most recently EPA approved 303(d) list of impaired waters for turbidity, siltation, or sedimentation, any 

waterbody for which a TMDL has been finalized or approved by EPA for turbidity, siltation, or 

sedimentation, any waterbody assigned the Outstanding Alabama Water use classification in accordance 

with ADEM Admin. Code. 335-6-10-.09, and any waterbody assigned a special designation in accordance 

with ADEM Admin. Code. 335-6-10-.10. 

 

21. “Qualified Credentialed Professional” or “QCP” means a professional engineer (PE), or a 

Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC) as determined by CPESC, Inc.  Other 

registered or certified professionals such as a registered landscape architect, registered land surveyor, 

registered geologist, registered forester, Registered Environmental Manager as determined by the 

National Registry of Environmental  Professionals (NREP), or Certified Professional and Soil Scientist 

(CPSS)  as determined  by ARCPACS, and other Department accepted professional designations,  

certifications,  and/or accredited  university programs that can document requirements regarding proven 

training, relevant experience, and continuing education, that enable recognized individuals to prepare 

CBMPPs, to make sound professional judgments regarding Alabama NPDES rules, the requirements of 

this chapter, planning, design, implementation,  maintenance, and inspection of construction  sites, 

receiving waters, BMPs, remediation/cleanup of accumulated  offsite pollutants from the regulated site, 

and reclamation or effective Stormwater quality remediation of construction associated land disturbances, 

that meet or exceed recognized technical standards and guidelines, effective industry standard practices, 

and the requirements of this chapter. The QCP shall be in good standing with the authority granting the 

registration or designation.  The design and implementation of certain structural BMPs may involve the 

practice of engineering and require the certification of a professional engineer pursuant to Alabama law. 

 

94



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 4 of 8 

4 
 

22. “Sedimentation” means the process by which eroded material is transported and deposited by the 

action of wind, water, ice and/or gravity. 

 

23. “Silviculture” means the care and cultivation of forest trees; forestry. 

 

24.  “Site Containment Inspector” means the City employee who under general supervision, performs 

technical review of CBMP Plans, Erosion and Sediment Control Plans and land disturbance permit 

applications for completeness and general compliance to Federal and State regulations, and local 

Ordinances.  The Site Containment Inspector conducts field inspections of permitted land disturbance 

sites, during construction and at completion to assure compliance with approved plans and specifications. 

 

25. “Stabilize” means the application and establishment of the ground cover (vegetative, erosion 

resistant hard or soft material or impervious structures) planned for the site to eliminate soil erosion to the 

maximum extent practicable. 

 

26. “Stormwater” means runoff, accumulated precipitation, process water, and other wastewater 

generated directly or indirectly as a result of Land Disturbing Activity, the operation of a construction 

material management site, including but not limited to, precipitation, upgradient or offsite water that 

cannot be diverted away from the site, and wash down water associated with normal construction  

activities.  Stormwater does not mean discharges authorized by the Department via other permits or 

regulations. 

 

27. “Storm Water Management” means all natural and man-made elements used to convey storm 

water from the first point of impact within the construction site to a suitable outlet location. 

 

28. “Temporary Stabilize” means the application and establishment of temporary ground cover 

(vegetative, erosion resistant hard or soft materials or impervious structures) for the purpose of 

temporarily reducing raindrop impact and sheet erosion in areas where final stabilization cannot be 

established due to project phasing, seasonal limitations or other project related restrictions. 

 

29. “Wetland” means land where saturation with water is the dominant factor determining the nature 

of soil development and the types of plant and animal communities living in the soil and on its surface 

(Cowardin, December 1979). 

 

30. “Wetland Delineation” means the act of establishing the boundary between wetlands and uplands 

(or non-wetlands). 

 

SECTION V: APPLICABILITY & EXCEPTIONS 

 This Ordinance shall apply to residential dwellings and any other land disturbance activity which 

disturbs one thousand (1000) square feet or greater within the City of Daphne; and, undertaken by any 

person on any land within the City of Daphne’s city limits except for the following: 

 

 

1. Any emergency activity that is immediately necessary for the protection of life, property, or  

natural resources. 

 

2. Any land disturbance which requires a Right-of-Way Permit from the Public Works Department  

of the City of Daphne. 

 

3. Any nursery, agricultural and Silvicultural operations. 

 

95



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 5 of 8 

5 
 

4. Any land disturbance activity which  requires a Site Disturbance Permit from the City of 

Daphne’s Community Development Director or his or her designee. 

  

5. Any landfills or mining operations permitted by ADEM. 

 

6. Any land zoned as Agricultural in the City of Daphne. 

  

SECTION VI: PERMIT APPLICATION REQUIRED  

1. A permit for residential dwellings and other land disturbance activity which disturbs one 

thousand (1000) square feet or greater within the City of Daphne shall be required.  No person, firm, 

business or corporation shall engage in any Land Disturbing Activity prior to obtaining a land disturbance 

permit from the City of Daphne Building Department.  Unless the land disturbance permit is issued prior 

to the building permit, for new construction and additions, the land disturbance permit is incorporated into 

the building permit and the building permit must be obtained prior to land disturbance. 

 

2. All applications for land disturbance permits shall be accompanied by a Construction Best 

Management Practices Plan.  It is not required that the CBMP Plan be prepared by a QCP, unless the site 

is required to have ADEM NPDES General Permit coverage.  The plan shall meet all minimum 

requirements set out in the most current edition of the Alabama Handbook. 

 

3. A permit shall be issued to either the titled owner of the said real property or the permittee 

charged with the contractual obligation of the  Land Disturbing Activity.  A fee of one hundred dollars 

($100.00) shall be charged and collected by the City of Daphne Building Department for the issuance of 

the land disturbance permit. 

 

SECTION VII: CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES PLAN MINIMUM 

REQUIREMENTS 

 For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following are the minimum requirements for 

the Construction Best Management Practices Plan: 

 

1. Land disturbance that results in a total land disturbance of one acre or greater and sites less 

than one (1) acre but are part of a Common Plan of Development or Sale shall have permit coverage 

under the ADEM  NPDES Construction General Permit prior to the issuance of the City of Daphne Land 

Disturbance Permit and/or Building Permit.  At a minimum the site’s CBMPP shall meet all conditions 

and qualifications of the General Permit and BMP design should be based on the guidance in the Alabama 

Handbook.  

 

2. Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be required for all land disturbing activities.  It shall be  

the sole responsibility of the contractor/or permittee to promptly implement effective BMPs in accordance 

with the permittee’s land disturbance permit and submitted Construction Best Management Practices Plan 

prior to commencing the Land Disturbing Activity.  The permittee shall be solely responsible for ensuring 

that all BMPs are implemented and maintained for the entire duration of the Land Disturbing Activity. 

The permittee shall also be solely responsible for ensuring that the BMPs are in accordance with 

established industry standards, good engineering practices, and all standards as set out in the Alabama 

Handbook. 

 

3. The permittee shall ensure proper onsite containment and disposal of all construction building  

materials, supplies, trash, debris, fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, detergents sanitary waste and any other 

solid waste.   

 

96



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 6 of 8 

6 
 

4. The permittee shall ensure proper onsite containment and disposal of any pollutants resulting 

 from equipment and vehicle washing, concrete, paint and other washout water.  

 

5. The permittee shall minimize the discharge of any pollutants resulting from a spill or leak from,  

including but not limited to vehicles, mechanical equipment, and chemical or fuel storage.  

 

6. The permittee shall stabilize all construction entrances and exits to minimize off-site tracking of  

sediment from vehicles.  

 

7. The permittee shall minimize the generation of dust during construction.  

 

8. The permittee shall minimize the disturbance of steep slopes, unless infeasible.   

 

9. The permittee shall minimize the amount of soil exposure and compaction during construction 

activity.  

 

10. The permittee shall Temporarily Stabilize disturbed areas immediately whenever work toward 

project completion and Final Stabilization of any portion of the site has temporarily ceased on any portion 

of the site and will not resume for a period exceeding thirteen (13) calendar days. 

 

11. The permittee shall provide the necessary measures to ensure that drainage structures  

important to overall Storm Water Management and control are not adversely affected by clearing, 

grading, or any other land disturbing activities and shall permanently stabilize any right-of-ways disturbed 

by during construction. 

 

12. All onsite areas disturbed during construction shall be permanently stabilized prior to  issuance 

of a Certificate of Occupancy.  Any offsite disturbances shall with land owner permission be permanently 

stabilized prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy.   

 

13. The permittee shall, with property owner permission, remove any offsite sediments from 

adjacent properties and stabilize any areas disturbed during the removal.  If the removal involves streams 

or wetlands, proper Federal and State permits shall be required prior to removal. 

 

14. Any permitted land disturbance site that has continued compliance issues and/or offsite impacts 

may be issued a Stop Work Order; ceasing all activity except BMP installation and maintenance.  At that 

time the permittee may be required to submit an updated CBMP Plan prepared by a Qualified 

Credentialed Professional. 

 

SECTION VIII: INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCEREQUIREMENTS 

 For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following are the minimum requirements for 

the CBMPP Inspections:  

 

1. The permittee shall ensure proper implementation, daily observation, regular inspection and 

continual maintenance of effective Best Management Practices to prevent offsite impacts and impacts to 

downstream water quality. 

 

2. In the event the Best Management Practices are found to be in need of maintenance or  

improvements, the permittee shall commence and implement all necessary maintenance and corrective 

measures to the Best Management Practices within forty-eight (48) hours of notice unless prevented by 

unsafe weather conditions. 

 

97



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 7 of 8 

7 
 

SECTION IX: SENSITIVE AREA PROTECTION  

 Sensitive areas within the City that require enhanced environmental protection are listed below: 

 

1. Priority Construction Site:  Any  Priority Construction Site that is less than an acre with continued 

compliance issues and/or offsite impacts may be issued a Stop Work Order; ceasing all activity except 

BMP maintenance.  At that time, the permittee may be required to submit an updated CBMP Plan 

prepared by a Qualified Credentialed Professional. 

 

2. Streams & Shorelines:  During CBMP Plan  review, if it is determined that the site may impact 

State waters or shore lines, the City may require that the permittee have the site evaluated by the state and 

federal permitting agency to determine whether a state or federal permit will be required to complete site 

work.  If it is determined that a permit will be required, then the permit must be acquired by the prior to 

issuance of any City permit.  

 

3. Wetlands:  During CBMP Plan review, if it is determined that the site may impact potential 

wetlands, the City may require that the permittee have a Wetland Delineation performed at his or her cost.  

If a determination is made that the site will impact wetlands then all state and federal permits must be 

acquired by the prior to issuance of the City’s permit. 

 

SECTION X: ENFORCEMENT  

          Failure to comply with any section of this Ordinance is hereby deemed a violation and shall be 

sufficient cause for the City of Daphne, through either a Building Inspector, Site Containment Inspector 

or Code Enforcement Officer, to issue an order suspending all work (a “Stop Work Order”) on the land 

disturbing site until satisfactory measures are taken to comply with this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XI: CRIMINAL PROSECUTION 
1. Any person that has violated or continues to violate this Ordinance shall be liable to criminal 

prosecution to the fullest extent of the law, and be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00), 

but not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or imprisonment not to exceed one-hundred and eighty 

days (180), or both.  

 

2. The City may recover all attorneys’ fees court costs and other expenses associated with enforcement 

of this Ordinance, including sampling and monitoring expenses. 

 

SECTION XII:  MINIMUM PENALTIES 

1. Penalty for Violation-Fines:  The following schedule of fines is hereby established by the City 

pursuant to this Ordinance and the laws of the State of Alabama.  In addition to the fines so established, the 

Defendant shall pay, in addition to such fine amount, any court costs which are in effect at the time of such 

violation occurs.  If the Defendant elects to plead guilty before a magistrate to a violation of any of the 

municipal offenses contained herein for which there is a fine set forth in this section, the fine plus applicable 

court cost shall apply.  In lieu of appearing before a magistrate, the Defendant may sign a guilty plea and 

waiver of trial provision on the municipal offense citation, and deliver the amount of the fine plus applicable 

court costs to the Clerk of the Municipal Court or mail such amount to the Clerk of the Municipal Court for 

the City of Daphne at 1502 Highway 98, Daphne, Alabama 36526.  

 

2. Schedule of Fines:  Any person found guilty of the provisions of this Ordinance as referenced 

herein, the minimum fines shall apply as follows: 

 a. First Offense     $100.00 Plus Court Cost 

 b. All Subsequent Offense  Court Appearance, Fines and Court Cost 

  

98



ORDINANCE 2014-14              CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES           Page 8 of 8 

8 
 

In addition to the other remedies so provided herein, the City retains the right to bring an action for 

injunctive relief to require the payment of damages to City properties, including but not limited to streets, 

and right of ways, resulting from the permittee’s failure to implement and/or maintain construction site 

BMPs.  

 

SECTION XIII: REPEALER 

 Ordinance No. 2008-54 is specifically repealed in its entirety and any other Ordinances or parts of 

Ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed in so far as they conflict.  

 

SECTION XIV: SEVERABILITY 

Should any section or provision of this article be declared invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of any of the remaining provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XV: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS________________ DAY OF _______, 2014.   

 

                           

        

       _____________________________ 

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR   

        

 

ATTEST:  

 

_________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

99



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-15 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE SECTION 9.1, SECTION 9.10, AND 

SECTION 10.6 OF THE CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that certain revisions to Sections 9.1, 9.10 and 10.6 of the City of Daphne Employee Handbook 

are necessary for the proper administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  REVISIONS TO SECTIONS 9.1, 9.10, AND 10.6 
 

 That Sections 9.1, 9.10, and Section 10.6 of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby 

revised as follows: 

 

9.1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ATTENDANCE AT WORK. 

General Requirements. All employees are responsible for being present at work during their 

scheduled work time, unless their absence has been approved by their department head or his 

designated representative.  If an employee has excessive absence occurrences or incomplete 

shifts (arriving late or leaving early), the employee will be subject to discipline.  Any absence 

from work for a period of three (3) consecutive working days without providing notice as 

required by this policy may be considered as a voluntary resignation by an employee. 

Department heads and supervisors must keep up with employee attendance and the reasons for 

absences, tardiness, and early departures to insure unexcused absenteeism is addressed through 

the disciplinary process while approved absences are excused and not counted for disciplinary 

purposes. 

 

Notice Requirements.  Each department will provide methods for employees to provide notice of 

absences, late arrivals or early departures, such as by providing supervisor cell phone numbers 

and administrative contact persons within the department.  As a general rule applicable to all city 

employees, if an employee is unable to report for work, or to report on time, he must notify his 

supervisor or department head within fifteen (15) minutes of the scheduled start of his work day 

unless unusual circumstances prevent him from doing so.  Department heads may provide for an 

alternative notification period applicable to specific departments, such as thirty minutes or one 

hour prior to the start of the work day.  Department heads will ensure such alternative reporting 

time frames are posted in the department or otherwise made known to department staff in 

writing, and will provide a copy of the notification period to the human resources director.  If an 

employee has a need to leave his assigned work area before the end of his scheduled work time, 

he must notify his supervisor or department head and obtain permission for such early departure. 

An employee’s report of an absence, late arrival, or early departure on the day of the absence or 

tardiness as required by this policy does not guarantee that the absence or tardiness will be 

100



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

authorized or excused.  Management has discretion to decide if the reason given for the absence 

or tardiness is a sufficient excuse.  If employee foresees a need to be absent for a period longer 

than one workday, the employee should consider applying for a Leave of Absence. Applying for 

a Leave of Absence does not suggest the Leave will necessarily be approved.  Requested time 

away from work which has been approved by the employee’s department head or supervisor and 

included in the schedule at least three (3) weeks in advance, absent extraordinary circumstances, 

also is not considered an unexcused absence.   

 

Hazardous Weather & Emergencies. Hazardous weather (e.g., hurricanes or ice storms) or 

emergency situations (e.g., fires or gas leaks) may require total or partial closure of a single City 

worksite or multiple worksites or total or partial cancelation of a City activity or multiple 

activities. Absent a state of emergency declared by or ratified by the City Council defining the 

length of a declared emergency, the Mayor has sole discretion to designate when hazardous 

weather or emergency conditions begin and end for purposes of applying the policies and 

procedures in this handbook.  On a department by department basis and depending on the nature 

of the hazardous weather or emergency circumstances, the Mayor may authorize the closure of 

the affected City worksite(s) and/or the cancelation of the affected City activity or activities. 

Depending on the circumstances, employees may be required by the Mayor or Department 

Head(s) authorized by the Mayor to: (i) report for work at the employee’s usual worksite as 

scheduled; (ii) report for work at an alternative worksite or worksites; (iii) report early or late for 

a scheduled shift; (iv) report for previously unscheduled work; (v) remain off work and not 

report for a scheduled shift; and (vi) engage in alternative duties or activities.  Failure or refusal 

without authorization or excuse by the Mayor or Department Head to engage in any instructed 

activities constitutes insubordination and/or unexcused absenteeism, and may result in discipline 

up to and including discharge.  The City will make every reasonable effort to publicize approved 

details regarding worksite closing(s), alterative worksite location(s), alternative activities or 

duties, and alterations to scheduled shift starting and departure times, such as by broadcasting 

over the local radio station and/or using other technologies.   But each employee remains 

individually responsible to contact his supervisor or Department Head concerning whether he 

should report to work at the scheduled time and whether he should report to his usual worksite if 

he is uncertain as to the situation created by the hazardous weather or emergency.  Each 

employee is expected to make a good faith effort to get to work at his usual worksite at the 

scheduled arrival time and to remain at work until the scheduled departure time, unless otherwise 

notified.  An employee who is unable to get to work, or arrive at the scheduled start time, or 

remain until the scheduled departure time, at either his usual or alternative worksite, due to 

hazardous weather or emergency conditions must notify his supervisor as provided in this policy 

in order for the absence or tardiness or early departure to be excused. Absences from work, late 

arrivals, and early departures due to hazardous weather or emergency conditions must be 

reported as such on attendance reports.  The employee’s Department Head may require an 

employee to make up the missed time so long as feasible work is available and the time can be 

made up in the same workweek. 

 

9.10. PAID ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE.   

Overview. Unclassified and classified employees may be granted administrative leave with pay 

in accordance with the following guidelines, provided the absence is on a regularly scheduled 

workday for the employees.  The number of hours of leave granted for each approved day of 

101



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

leave will not exceed the number of hours the employee would have been scheduled to work for 

that day.  Administrative leave will not be charged against the vacation or sick leave of an 

employee.  The following types of administrative leave are provided by the city. 

 

Civil/Legal.  Leave will be granted eligible employees for jury duty, court attendance as a 

witness in a case not involving personal litigation, and voting.  The length of time granted for 

voting will be the reasonable time necessary to vote and normally will be granted at the start or 

end of a workday.  Attendance in court by an employee who is acting in an official capacity will 

not be considered as administrative leave but as regular work time.  The provisions of any law or 

city policy that require any fees provided an employee who is attending court in an official 

capacity to be turned into the city will be observed.  In other situations, any fees paid an 

employee will be retained by the employee in addition to his administrative leave pay. 

 

Bereavement.  Bereavement leave is intended to provide an eligible employee time off with pay 

for purposes of attending to personal matters associated with the death of a close family member 

and/or for attending a family member’s funeral.  Up to twenty-four (24) hours of bereavement 

leave will be granted an employee who has a death in his immediate family.  Immediate family is 

defined as follows:  Spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, brothers, sisters, or 

the equivalent relations of the employee’s spouse.  Included within the definition of family are 

those persons who live with the family as a member of the family whether related or not.  If 

additional time off is required beyond the bereavement leave days authorized, an employee may 

request vacation leave or leave without pay. 

 

Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave (Non-Exempt Employees).   Depending on the 

circumstances, under conditions described in and during the time frame designated in Section 

9.1, paid hazardous weather/emergency leave for non-exempt employees may be provided. Time 

paid for hazardous weather/emergency leave will not count as “hours worked” for purposes of 

overtime calculation.  If an employee is scheduled to work but, due to conditions described in 

Section 9.1, is instructed not to report for work as scheduled, or is instructed to arrive late or 

depart early, or is authorized and excused from arriving or departing on time after giving notice 

as provided in Section 9.1, then the non-exempt employee will be paid an amount equal to his 

regular pay rate for the scheduled time not worked.  For example, if a 12-hour shift non-exempt 

employee is instructed or allowed to report to work six hours late and then works the remainder 

of the 12-hour scheduled shift, the employee will be paid the usual amount for the full 12-hour 

shift. Even if hazardous weather or emergency conditions exist, no employee will receive 

administrative leave under this policy for time not worked due to other reasons, such as the 

employee is on a previously scheduled leave of another type or was not otherwise scheduled to 

work.    

 

10.6.  EMERGENCY DUTY PAY 

Additional Emergency Duty Overtime Pay For Exempt Employees.  In the event of a state of 

emergency affecting the City of Daphne as declared by Federal, State, County, or City 

government and ratified by the Mayor of the City of Daphne and/or such other competent 

authority, the Mayor may utilize exempt employees to aid the City’s emergency response during 

extended work hours beyond the employees’ usual schedules.  In the event of such a declared 

state of emergency, beginning when such state of emergency is declared and ending when such 

102



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

state of emergency is lifted, exempt employees will be paid additional emergency duty overtime 

compensation for hours worked in response to the emergency over 40 in the seven-day 

workweek.  The rate of pay for this additional emergency duty overtime compensation will be 

equal to one and one-half (1
1
/2) times the exempt employee’s “calculated hourly rate” which will 

be determined by dividing the exempt employee's annual salary by 2080. 

 

Additional Hazardous Weather/Emergency Duty Pay for Non-Exempt Employees.   Depending 

on the circumstances, under conditions described in and during the time frame designated in 

Section 9.1, two types of hazardous weather/emergency premium pay for non-exempt employees 

may be provided, if the hazardous weather or emergency conditions affect multiple City 

worksites and/or multiple City activities. If the hazardous weather or emergency affects only a 

single City worksite or activity, and employees are instructed to work at an alternative worksite 

or provided alternative duties, no additional premium will be paid for such work.  For example, 

if fire damages the Library, and Library employees are relocated to work at City Hall, no 

additional premium pay will be provided. If a non-exempt employee is required to work as 

previously scheduled or required to report for unscheduled work or required to report earlier than 

scheduled or depart work later than scheduled despite hazardous weather or  emergency 

conditions affecting multiple City worksites or activities as provided in Section 9.1, the non-

exempt employee will be paid (1) an additional premium equal to ½ times the employee’s pay 

rate for time actually worked during the employee’s regularly scheduled shift, and (2) an 

additional premium equal to the employee’s pay rate for time worked beyond the hours 

previously scheduled for the employee. For example, a non-exempt employee paid at $15.00 per 

hour who is scheduled to work an eight (8) shift and who is required to actually work ten hours 

will be paid $22.50/hour during the regularly scheduled eight hours and $30/hour for the two 

additional hours worked. The overtime pay rate for any hours worked over 40 during the same 

workweek will be adjusted accordingly.    

 

Inclement Weather – Use of Vacation Pay.  When inclement weather prevents an employee who 

works outdoors from performing work outside, he will be given other duties that can be 

performed indoors.  If an employee does not wish to perform the alternate work, he may request 

vacation leave; however, he will be required to work if his presence is needed.  If an employee 

requests time off and he does not have any accrued leave with pay that he can take, he may be 

given time off without pay. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

 That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

103



2014-15                   Hazardous Weather/Emergency Leave and Premium Pay Policies              Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____  DAY OF ________, 2014. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

104



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-16 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that it is in the 

public interest to provide limited financial assistance to community groups and organizations 

within the community to assist with activities or special events that advances a public purpose.  

This support is in recognition of the value of these activities to the benefit, growth and spirit of 

the public community and in helping the municipality retain a strong community focus.  The 

Council sees a need for a uniform policy for community grants to limit financial contributions on 

an annual basis and to provide for a process or procedure for the request and administration of 

community grants. 

 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

 SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 

  Unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning, the words, terms and 

phrases used in this Ordinance shall have the following respective meanings: 

 

 "City" shall mean the City of Daphne in the State of Alabama. 

 

 “Complete application form” shall mean a properly filled out 

application and all supporting documents.  

 

 "Person" shall mean any person, entity, firm, corporation, 

partnership, association, administrator, trustee, or other fiduciary. 

 

 "Public purpose" shall mean the objective of the promotion of 

public health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment, and 

the general welfare of the community. 

 

 SECTION 2.  COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAM 

 

  The City of Daphne hereby adopts a Community Grant Program (hereinafter 

“CGP”).  This Ordinance does not specially commit the City to any particular contribution of 

funds.  As part of the annual budgeting process the City Council will determine the financial 

commitment to the Community Grant Program.   

 

 

105



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 2 of 4 

 

 SECTION 3.  APPLICABILITY 

 

  Outside entities which provide public benefit but not direct financial benefit to the 

City of Daphne may only be funded by the City of Daphne in accordance with the CGP 

established herewithin. The CGP shall not apply to contributions and requests for contributions 

for memberships, dues, or contributions to entities whose efforts provide direct revenue to the 

City of Daphne.  The City Council and Mayor shall jointly decide which entities must enter the 

CGP and which entities qualify under the aforementioned membership/dues/contributions 

exception to the CGP. 

 

 SECTION 4.  FUNDING CATEGORIES 

 

  The City has determined that there are classifications of activities that serve a 

Public Purpose and that benefit the citizens of the City of Daphne.  These classifications include 

but are not limited to education, arts, culture, community beautification, environmental 

awareness, community heritage, supporting youth and seniors, tourism and economic 

development.  

 

 SECTION 5.  FUNDING LIMITIONS 

 

  The CGP has an annual maximum budget of one half of one percent (0.5%) of 

Budgeted Revenues for the General Fund.  Annual contributions shall be limited to a maximum 

of five thousand dollars ($5,000) per entity (hereinafter “Grant Cap”)   

 

 

 SECTION 6.  APPLICATION PROCESS 

 

  The City will create an approved Community Grant Application Form.  The 

current version of the Community Grant Application Form is herein attached as an example but 

is not the definitive form.  The form may be altered periodically by the Mayor or his designee.  

This Form will be the only manner in which a request for CGP funds will be entertained.  The 

Application Form will specifically require that the applicant submit the organization’s most 

recent audited financial statements. In the event that the organization does not have their 

financial statements audited, the most recent non-audited statements may satisfy the submission 

requirement. The Mayor has certain obligations and duties regarding the budget.  Due to these 

obligations the Mayor will determine the deadline for submissions for the next fiscal year.  Said 

deadline may appear on the Community Grant Form and/or by contacting City Hall.   

  

  Application forms will be available upon request from the City Clerk’s office.   

 

  

 SECTION 7.  SCHOOLS 

 

The schools within the city limits of Daphne will not be funded directly and 

instead may only be provided funding through the Supporting Educational Enrichment in 

Daphne’s Schools (hereinafter “SEEDS”).  The maximum request from SEEDS will reflect the  

106



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Contribution Cap for each of the participating schools within the Daphne city limits in addition 

to SEEDS individually each fiscal year.  Therefore SEEDS, and by extension the public schools, 

are limited to the number of participating schools plus one (SEEDS itself) multiplied by the 

Grant Cap. Thus the amount paid directly to SEEDS may exceed the Grant Cap, but the amount 

utilized by SEEDS individually and not as a pass through will not exceed the maximum.  Any 

other pass-through arrangement shall be disfavored.  

 

  

 SECTION 8.  ANNUAL AUDIT 

 

  Should a participant in the CGP receive funds, the City reserves the right to 

inspect and audit any and all expenditures related to the CGP funds.  If the CGP participant is 

non-cooperative or cannot provide satisfactory back up documentation, their eligibility for future 

CGP funds will be suspended indefinitely.  

 

 SECTION 9.  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 

 

  It shall be the duty of every person/entity receiving CGP funds to keep and 

preserve suitable records of the use of said funds.  Such records shall be kept and preserved for a 

period of three (3) years and shall be open for examination at any time by the duly authorized 

representative of the City. 

 

 SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY 

 

  If any section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding or holding 

shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance which is 

in itself and of itself valid and constitutional. 

 

 SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

   

 SECTION 12. INFORMATION MAY NOT BE DIVULGED 

 

  It shall be unlawful for any person connected with the administration of this 

Ordinance to divulge any information obtained by him/her in the course of inspection and 

examination of the books of account, invoices, bank statements, sales tax records, state and 

federal income tax records, or other reports and memoranda or the taxpayer made pursuant to the 

provisions hereof, except to the Mayor, the City Council, the City Attorney, the City Finance 

Director, or their agents or representative connected with the administration of this Code, or 

pursuant to court proceedings or process. 

 

  

107



ORDINANCE 2014- 16         ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COMMUNITY GRANTS         Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _______________, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 _________________________________                                             

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

 

 

 

 

   

108



 

   

 
Contact: Mike Hinson 
mhinson@daphneal.com  
City of Daphne, AL 
P.O. Box 400 
Daphne, AL  36526 
(251) 621-9000 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATION 
 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Agency Name 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Executive Director 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address 

 

 

__________________________________________                              ____________________________________________________ 

Phone Number            Email Address 

 

 

              Community Grant Amount Requested:          __________________________________________ 

 

 

       Prior Year Amount Requested:     __________________________________________ 

 

 

        Prior Year Amount Awarded:          __________________________________________ 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please Include the following required documentation: 

 

1. Grant Programs 

Please compile a summary that specifies how grant funds will be used to better serve the community and the City of Daphne 
 

2. Requests made to other government agencies 

Please list all requests made to other cities or governmental agencies and the amounts requested 
 

3. Board of Directors 

Include all Board Members contact information including email addresses and place of employment.  Also please include a copy of the board meeting 
minutes that authorizes the request for grant funds 

 

4. Agency Staff/Administration 

Please list all individuals associated with the grant application including email addresses and phone numbers 

 

5. Current Audited Financial Statements 

Please include the latest audited Financial Statements 

 

6. E-Verify & Tax Documentation  

Please provide proof of enrollment in the E-Verify system & complete the W-9 form 

 

109

mailto:mhinson@daphneal.com


110



111



112



113



114



ORDINANCE 2014-17-A 
Civic Center HVAC Chiller Emergency Replacement Appropriation 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to lightning damage to the Civic Center HVAC Chiller an emergency 
replacement is needed to get the HVAC system back to fully functional capacity; and 
 
WHEREAS, several events have been booked over the next weeks and months at the 
Civic Center and HVAC is required for these events. 
 
WHEREAS, quotes have been obtained for repairs verses replacement cost for the chiller 
 
WHEREAS, the quote for repair was estimated to be $56,000 and the purchase of a new 
chiller is estimated to cost $250,000 + $41,000 for a rental chiller ($20,000 
delivery/setup/1st month’s rent + $21,000/two additional months); and  
 
WHEREAS,  HVAC companies have advised that purchasing a new more efficient chiller 
unit will create an estimated $12,000-15,000/year energy savings that will offset the cost of 
the new unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s insurance policy is estimated to reimburse $51,000 (repair cost 
$56,000 less the $5,000 deductible); and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds up to the amount of $240,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for replacement of the Civic 
Center chiller and rental chiller with the insurance reimbursement (estimated $51,000) to be 
recorded in the budget as an insurance settlement; and 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 

 
 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood. , Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

115



ORDINANCE 2014-17-B 
 

Civic Center HVAC Chiller Emergency Repair Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to lightning damage to the Civic Center HVAC Chiller an 
emergency repair is needed to get the HVAC system back to fully functional 
capacity; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes have been obtained and the repair cost is estimated to be 
$56,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s insurance policy is estimated to reimburse all but the $5,000 
deductible; and 
 
WHEREAS, an emergency repair is needed because several events have been 
booked over the next weeks and months at the Civic Center and HVAC is required 
for these events. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds up to the amount of $5,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for insurance 
deductible required for the Civic Center HVAC Chiller repair and $51,000 will be 
recorded in the budget as an insurance settlement. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 
 
         
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

116


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes  -  March 17 - Amended
	Council Minutes - April 7
	Report of Standing Committees
	Building & Property Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA Minutes
	Report of Officers
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-13 - RES -  Prepaid Travel  Resolution
	Backup to 2014-13 - RES - Prepaid Travel
	Backup to 2014-13 - RES - Prepaid Travel
	2014-14- RES - Support for ADEM C&D Landfill for Tallent Lane Facitlity
	Backup to 2014-14 - RES
	2014-15 - RES - AA-RESOLIST-GOVDEALS COM
	2014-16 - RES - GOVDEALS COM (3)
	2014-17 - RES - Acceptance of Streets & Drainage - Bellaton Phase Three
	Backup to 2014-17 - RES - Bellaton Phase 3 Street Acceptance CC
	2014-14 - ORD - Land Disturbance Ordinance
	2014-15 - ORD - Amend EHB - Sections 9 1 9 10 and 10 6 - Hazardous weather and emergency leave
	2014-16 - ORD - Community Grant Program Ordinance CGP (2)
	Backup to 2014-16 - COMMUNITY GRANT FORM
	Backup to 2014-16 - E-Verify
	2014-17 - A - ORD - Civic Center Chiller Emergency REPLACEMENT
	2014-17-B - ORD - Civic Center Chiller Emergency Repair
	#4 - CTK-ALLEY-STREET-18x24 artwork.pdf
	Page 1

	#6 - CTK-ALLEY-STREET- virtual view.pdf
	Page 1

	#7 - CTK-COLLEGE-18x24 artwork.pdf
	Page 1

	#8 - CTK-COLLEGE-STREET- virtual view.pdf
	Page 1




